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ANN K. BARNETT
Auditor-Controller-County Clerk

December 19, 2006

Honorable Board of Supervisors
County of Kern

Honorable Board Members:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the County of Kern (County) for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2006 is hereby submitted in compliance with Section 25253 of the Government Code of
the State of California and Board of Supervisors’ Resolution No. 69-58, dated January 28, 1969. The
accompanying financial statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America (GAAP), and audited by a firm of certified public accountants in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the County.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the
information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
management of the County has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed
both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable
information for the preparation of the County’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because
the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the County’s comprehensive framework of
internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the
financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best
of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The County’s financial statements have been audited by Brown Armstrong, a firm of certified public
accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements of the County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 are free of material misstatement. The
independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor
concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion
that the County’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the
financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the County was part of a broader, federally
mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards
governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair



presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls and
compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements
involving the administration of federal awards. These reports will be available in the County’s separately
issued Single Audit Report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany
the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter
of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The
County’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

The County of Kern was organized April 2, 1866 from portions of Los Angeles and Tulare Counties,
making it the southernmost county of California’s San Joaquin Valley, and occupies 8,170 square miles.
Kern County is organized as a general law county under California law, and is divided into five
supervisorial districts. Approximately 40 percent of the residents live in the unincorporated area. There
are eleven incorporated cities located within the County. Bakersfield, the County seat, has approximately
60 percent of the County’s total population of 770,424 living within the greater metropolitan area.

Policymaking and legislative authority is vested in the County Board of Supervisors (Board), which
consists of an elected supervisor from each of five districts. The Board is responsible, among other
things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees, and appointing the County
Administrative Officer and most non-elected department heads. Supervisors are elected to four-year
staggered terms, with two supervisors being elected in even-year elections and three supervisors being
elected in odd-year elections. The County has elected department heads responsible for the offices of
the Assessor-Recorder, Auditor-Controller-County Clerk, District Attorney, Sheriff-Coroner, and Treasurer-
Tax Collector. In addition, the department heads for the following departments are appointed by and
report directly to the Director of the Resource Management Agency: Community and Economic
Development, Engineering and Survey Services, Environmental Health Services, Planning, and Roads.

As depicted on the organizational chart on page 8, the County provides a full range of services in the
following areas: general government; public protection; public ways and facilities; health and sanitation;
public assistance; education; and culture and recreation.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the County’s financial planning and control. The County
prepares and adopts a budget on or before August 30 each fiscal year in accordance with Government
Code Sections 29000-29144. The County adopts budgets for all major funds and certain non-major
governmental funds. The Auditor-Controller-County Clerk is responsible for controlling expenditures
within budgeted appropriations. Expenditures are controlled at the object level for all budget units within
the County. Encumbrance accounting is utilized to ensure effective budgetary control and accountability.
Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end and encumbrances outstanding at that time are reported
as reservations of fund balance for subsequent year expenditures. Transfers of appropriations between
budget units must be approved by the Board of Supervisors. Necessary supplemental appropriations,
normally financed by unanticipated revenues during the year, and transfers of appropriations between
expenditure object classifications, must also be approved by the Board.

Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for which
an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the General Fund and all budgeted major funds,
comparisons are presented on pages 98 - 118 as part of the required supplementary information. For
non-major governmental funds with appropriated annual budgets, these comparisons are presented in
the combining and individual fund statements and schedules subsection of this report, which begins on
page 139.



Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered
from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the County operates.

Local economy

Oil extraction, agricultural production, and government are driving forces in the County’s economy. Four
of the top ten taxpayers of the County are oil producers or are closely related to the oil industry. Kern
County remains the largest oil-producing County in the State, containing an estimated 71% of all the
State’s oil reserves.

The Assessor’s total net assessed valuation roll at June 30, 2006, with oil and gas representing
approximately 23% of the total, reflected a 15.24% increase in value, which increased available property
taxes to the County in fiscal year 2005-06.

Agriculture continues to remain relatively stable, with the County being the fourth leading producer of
agricultural products in the State. The unemployment rate decreased significantly from 9.1% in 2004-05
to 7.6% in 2005-06. The population of the County increased by 2.30% from 753,070 to 770,424. The
County’s major employers continue to be the public school system, Edwards Air Force Base, China Lake
Naval Weapons Center and the County of Kern.

Debt administration

The County has instituted a cash management program for its General Fund through the issuance of tax
and revenue anticipation notes. The notes provide cash flows to meet General Fund expenditures during
the period prior to collection of property taxes. On July 5, 2005 the County issued $125,000,000 in Tax
and Revenue Anticipation Notes that matured on June 30, 2006. On July 6, 2006, the County issued
$160,000,000 in Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes that matured on June 30, 2007.

As of June 30, 2006, the County had outstanding certificates of participation in a principal amount of
$67,145,000. The proceeds of such certificates of participation are being used for the purchase of
equipment, as well as the acquisition, construction and renovation of certain public facilities within the
County.

A summary of the County’s certificates of participation as of June 30, 2006 includes (in thousands):

Principal

Description of Issue Date Issued Maturity Outstanding
Kern Medical Center Emergency Facilities 1991 2007 1,290
Solid Waste Systems Improvements 1994 2010 6,180
Rosamond Library Project 1994 2015 1,175
1999 Capital Improvement Projects — Communications portion 1999 2020 5,380
Beale Memorial Library 1996 2008 3,310
Golf Course Capital Improvement 1996 2017 3,210
Fire Department 1997 2017 6,700
1999 Capital Improvement Projects — KMC portion 1999 2020 13,010
Airports Capital Improvements 2003 2024 12,725
Solid Waste Systems Improvements 2002 2017 14,165

Total: $ 67,145

In 1995 the County of Kern issued Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds in the amount of $227,818,439. The
courts and the Kern County Retirement Association were included in the original issuance of the bonds;
however, they are no longer part of the County. In 2003, the County issued additional Taxable Pension
Obligation Bonds in an amount of $288,177,067.



Cash management policies and procedures

The County of Kern pools deposits for County departments as well as for local agencies such as cities,
school districts and other special purpose districts within the County. The Treasurer’s pooled cash and
investments do not include funds of the Kern County Employees’ Retirement Association, which is an
independent entity.

The Kern County Employees’ Retirement Association is governed by the Board of Retirement. Investment
counselors are hired by the Board of Retirement to invest retirement fund assets.

The County Treasurer-Tax Collector is the direct receiver of property tax payments and most large
government payments for the County and local districts. All collections for fees and services received at
the County department level are required to be deposited with the County Treasurer-Tax Collector. In
order to improve security over departmental collections and expedite investment of receipts the County
Treasurer-Tax Collector has implemented a cash concentration program with a local bank, allowing
County departments to deposit directly to a County bank account. At June 30, 2006 the Treasurer’'s
Pooled Cash included cash and investments totaling $1.431 billion.

Pooled Cash funds are managed by Treasurer-Tax Collector staff to maintain adequate liquidity to meet
daily operating demands and to provide the highest interest earnings possible within County investment
policies and Government Code Section 53635. Investments authorized under this policy include U.S.
Treasury and Agency obligations, local and State bond issues, banker’s acceptances, commercial paper of
prime quality, certificates of deposit, medium term corporate notes, mutual funds and mortgage backed
securities. In October 1995, the Board of Supervisors approved formation of a Treasury Oversight
Committee. The purpose of the committee is to review and monitor the Pooled Cash investment policy
and to contract for an annual investment program compliance audit, filed with the Treasurer-Tax
Collector. Earnings on Pooled Cash during fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 averaged 3.54%, which
compares with 3.89% for 91-day Treasury Bills for the same period. Interest earnings are allocated
quarterly to each fund based on each fund’s average daily balance.

Risk management

The Risk Management Division of the Office of County Counsel determines and administers all risk
coverage requirements for the County of Kern. The County of Kern is generally self-insured for general
liability, unemployment insurance, workers’ compensation and employee medical and dental claims.

Excess liability insurance provides coverage for claims over $2,000,000 and up to $27,000,000. The
policy protects the County of Kern and its employees against most legal liabilities arising from automobile
liability, product damage, contractual liability, non-hospital malpractice and public officials” errors and
omissions. For medical malpractice, excess liability insurance is maintained for claims over $5,000,000.
Workers’ compensation claims are self-insured up to $1,500,000 per occurrence. Excess coverage is
maintained for workers’ compensation claims up to statutory limits. The County does not self-insure
against liability at its seven airports. Airport Liability insurance and Excess Airport Liability insurance is
maintained.

Financial activity of the programs is accounted for in separate Internal Service Funds for General Liability,
Group Health, Retiree Group Health, Unemployment Compensation and Workers’ Compensation.
Specialty insurance is accounted for in the General Fund.

Defined benefit pension plan

The County’s Board of Supervisors established the Kern County Employees’ Retirement Association
(KCERA) under the provisions of the County Employees’ Retirement Law of 1937 on January 1, 1945. All
permanent employees of the County and other agencies are covered by KCERA, which operates a cost-
sharing, multi-employer defined benefit plan. It is the responsibility of KCERA to function as an
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investment and administrative agent for the County with respect to the pension plan. KCERA became
independent from the County’s supervision and control as a result of the 1992 passage of Proposition
162, which legally established the independent control of the Board of Retirement. Separate audited
finandal statements can be obtained from KCERA at 1115 Truxtun Avenue, Bakersfield, California 93301.

Each year, an independent actuary engaged by the pension plan calculates the amount of the annual
contribution that the County must make to the pension plan to ensure that the plan will be able to fully
meet its obligations to retired employees on a timely basis.

The County also provides post retirement health and dental care benefits for certain retirees and their
dependents. At June 30, 2006, there were 866 retired employees receiving the Retiree Health Premium
Supplement Program and 2,669 retired employees receiving the Retiree Health Stipend. Additional
information on the pension arrangement and post employment benefits can be found in Notes XII. C and
XII. G, respectively, in the notes to the finandal statements.

Aw and Ack ments

The Government Finance Officers Assodation of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financal Reporting to the County of Kermn for its
comprehensive annual finandal report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. This was the ninth
consecutive year that the County of Kern has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual finandial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current comprehensive
annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we
are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

I wish to express my apprediation to the staff of the Auditor-Controller-County Clerk’s Office whose hard
work, professionalism and dedication are responsible for the preparation of this report, and to the firm of
Brown Armstrong, Certified Public Accountants for their professional assistance. Finally, I would like to
thank the Board of Supervisors and the County Administrative Office for their continued efforts in
planning and conducting the County’s financial operations in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully Submitted,

Ann K. Barnett
Auditor-Controller-County Clerk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Board of Supervisors
of the County of Kern, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, the aggregated remaining fund information, and the fiduciary funds of the County of Kern,
California as of and for the year ended June 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the County of Kern’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
County of Kern’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, the aggregated
remaining fund information, and the fiduciary funds of the County of Kern, California, as of June 30, 2006, and
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2006 the County adopted the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 44, Economic Condition Reporting, The Statistical Section
(An Amendment of NCGA Statement 1).

The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information as listed in the required
supplementary information section of the accompanying table of contents are not a required part of the County
of Kern’s basic financial statements, but are supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the County of Kern, California’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial
statements and schedules, the introductory section, and the statistical section identified in the table of
contents, where applicable, are presented for the purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part to
the basic financial statements. The information in introductory section and the statistical section has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on them. The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules have
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 19, 2006 on our consideration of
the County of Kern's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

BROWN ARMSTRONG PAULDEN

McCOWN STARBUCK THORNBURGH & KEETER
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

25N

Bakersfield, California
December 19, 2006
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MANAGEMENT'S
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS






County of Kern
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2006
Unaudited

Management’s discussion and analysis section of the County of Kern’s (County) Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) presents a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. Users of these financial statements should read this
section in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of the CAFR and the County’s basic financial
statements following this section. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of
dollars.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e At June 30, 2006, the County’s total net assets were $390,912. Of this total net asset amount
$23,777 is restricted, which may be used for the County’s ongoing obligations with external
restrictions. (For detail on Restricted Net Assets see Note XI. C on page 81). The remaining
balance of the total net assets is a deficit balance of $175,174, representing the unrestricted net
assets.

e During the current fiscal year, the County’s net assets increased by $51,600. The County’s net
assets for governmental activities and business-type activities increased by $39,866 and
$11,734, respectively.

e At June 30, 2006, the County’s governmental funds reported total ending fund balances of
$297,974, an increase of 10.9% compared to prior year's total ending fund balance.
Approximately 70% or $207,264 is unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending. See
further discussion in the Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds section on page 18.

e At June 30, 2006, the unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $80,986 or 19.5% of
total General Fund expenditures.

e At June 30, 2006, the County’s total long-term debt decreased by $16,028, primarily due to the
normal maturity of existing long-term debt.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management’s discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic
financial statements. These statements are organized so that readers can understand the County of Kern
as a financial whole or as an entire operating entity. The County’s basic financial statements are
comprised of three components: 1) Government-wide financial statements; 2) Fund financial statements
and 3) Notes to the financial statements. In addition to the financial statements, the CAFR also contains
other supplementary information.

1. Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the County’s finances in @ manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the County’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the reported assets and liabilities as net assets. Over time,
increases and decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information illustrating how the County’s net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon
as the underlying event takes place regardless of when cash is received or paid. Thus, some
revenues and expenses are reported in the CAFR for some items that will only result in cash
inflows and outflows in future fiscal years.
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Both the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities distinguishes between
activities that are primarily financed with taxes and intergovernmental revenues
(governmental activities) and those that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of
their costs through user fees and charges for services (business-type activities). The
County’s governmental activities include general government, public protection, public ways
and facilities, health and sanitation, public assistance, education, and culture and recreation.
The County’s business-type activities include the operation of seven airports, two sanitation
districts, medical services (Kern Medical Center), public transportation, three golf courses,
solid waste disposal, and activities associated with waste pick-up for the more densely
populated unincorporated areas of Bakersfield and Taft. Although the Golf Courses,
Sanitation Districts, Kern Asset Leasing Corporation and County Service Areas are legally
separate entities, in substance they are part of the County’s operations and have been
included as part of the County’s governmental and business activities.

The government-wide financial statements are presented on pages 23 and 24 of the CAFR.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds,
not the County as a whole. A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity designated to report
information about groupings of related accounts that are used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or attaining certain objectives in
accordance with specific regulations, restrictions, or limitations. All of the County’s funds can
be divided into three broad categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for activities that are similar in nature to the
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
the government-wide financial statements, the governmental fund financial statements
focus on future inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
used in evaluating Kern County’s future financing requirements and available resources.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. This will allow readers to get a better understanding of the
long-term impact of the government’s future financing decisions. Both the governmental
fund’s balance sheet and the governmental fund’s statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The County reports eight major individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for each of the major
funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements located in the Combining and Individual
Fund Statements and Schedules.

The County adopted an annual appropriated budget for all of its major governmental
funds. Budgetary comparison schedules have been provided for these funds to
demonstrate compliance with this budget and are included in the Required
Supplementary Section of the CAFR. Individual budgetary data for each of the budgeted
non-major governmental funds is provided elsewhere in the CAFR.

The basic governmental fund financial statements are presented on pages 25 through 30
13



of the CAFR.

Proprietary funds are reported in two ways: enterprise funds and internal service
funds. Enterprise funds are reported as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The County has the following enterprise funds: Airports, County
Sanitation Districts, Golf Courses, Kern Medical Center, Public Transportation, Waste
Management and Universal Collection. Internal service funds are used to accumulate
and allocate costs internally among the County’s various functions. The County uses the
following internal service funds: General Liability, General Services - Garage, Group
Health, Retiree Group Health, Unemployment Compensation, and Workers’
Compensation. Because such functions predominantly benefit governmental rather than
business-type activities, they have been included within governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary funds’ financial statements provide
separate information for Airports, Kern Medical Center and Waste Management, all of
which are considered to be major funds of the County. For presentation, all other
enterprise funds are combined into a single, aggregated column as well as the internal
service funds. Individual fund data for the non-major enterprise funds and the internal
service funds is provided in the combining statements in the CAFR.

The proprietary funds’ basic financial statements are presented on pages 31 through 34
of the CAFR.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the County government. Because fiduciary funds are presented separately, they do not
appear in the government-wide financial statements. The resources of fiduciary funds
are not available to support the County’s own programs. Fiduciary funds are accounted
for similar to proprietary funds.

The fiduciary fund basic financial statements are presented on pages 35 and 36 of the
CAFR.

3. Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential for a full
understanding of the data provided in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

The notes to the financial statements are presented on pages 37 through 97 of the CAFR.
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net assets may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position over time.
At June 30, 2006, the County’s total net assets were $390,912. See Table 1 on page 15 for details.

The County’s largest portion of total net assets is the investment in capital assets, $542,308. The
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, roads, flood control channels,
machinery and equipment, and construction in progress, less any related outstanding debt used to
acquire those assets. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens, and, as a
result, these assets are not available for future spending. Because the investment in capital assets is
reported net of related debt, and since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate the debt
liabilities, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources.

Of the County’s total net assets, $23,777 is restricted, which represents external restrictions on how
these resources may be used. The major portion of the restricted net assets is reserved for debt

repayment. The remaining balance of the net assets represents the unrestricted net assets, which has a
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deficit balance of $175,173. This deficit balance is primarily due to the inclusion of the debt associated
with the Kern County Tobacco Funding Corporation (see Note XII. J), and the 1995 Pension Obligation
Bonds used to pay the unfunded actuarial liability owed to the Kern County Retirement Association.

At June 30, 2006, the County as a whole and its governmental and business-type activities reported
positive balances in “Net Assets Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt” and “Restricted Net
Assets”. For both governmental and business-type activities, deficits were reported in unrestricted net
assets. Per GASB directive, the governmental activities’ unrestricted net assets deficit is primarily due to
the recognition of liabilities associated with the Kern County Tobacco Funding Corporation. The business-
type activities reported a deficit in unrestricted net assets of $52,275. This is the result of negative
unrestricted net assets for Kern Medical Center (KMC). KMC had higher expenses for salaries and
benefits. In addition, Federal and State reimbursements for indigent care have continuously not matched
the cost of providing such care.

Table 1 - County of Kern’s Net Assets (In Thousands)

Governmental Business - Type
Activities Activities Total Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 Change
Current and Other Asset $ 688,005 $ 693,362 $ 123,756 $ 121,493  $ 811,761  $ 814,855 $ (3,094)
Capital Assets 479,603 370,657 170,086 143,218 649,689 513,875 135,814
Total Assets $ 1,167,608 $ 1,064,019 $ 293,842 $ 264,711 $ 1461450 $ 1,328,730 $ 132,720
Current and Other Liabilities 76,169 71,447 40,185 24,679 116,354 96,126 20,228
Long - Term Liabilities 781,311 788,452 172,873 173,326 954,184 961,778 (7,594)
Total Liabilities 857,480 859,899 213,058 198,005 1,070,538 1,057,904 12,634
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net
of Related Debt 417,677 309,886 124,631 94,418 542,308 404,304 138,004
Restricted 15,349 35,653 8,428 9,724 23,777 45,377 (21,600)
Unrestricted (122,898) (141,419) (52,275) (37,436) (175,173) (178,855) 3,682
Total Net Assets 310,128 204,120 80,784 66,706 390,912 270,826 120,086
Total Liabilities & Net Assets $ 1,167,608 $ 1,064,019 $ 293,842 $ 264,711 $ 1,461,450 $ 1,328,730 $ 132,720
Net Assets
B Invested in Capital Assets,
450,000 Net of Related Debt
350,000 -
250,000 - O Restricted
150,000 -
50,000 -
(50’000)7 M Unrestricted
(150,000)-
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As shown in Table 2, the County’s total net assets increased by $51,600, of which, all $51,600 is for
current year activity.

Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services

Operating Grants & Contributions

Capital Grants & Contributions
General Revenues

Property Taxes

Aircraft Taxes

Vehicle License Taxes

Sales & Use Taxes

Transient Occupancy Tax

Transfer Tax

Other Taxes

Investment Earnings

Miscellaneous

Gain on Sale of Capital Assets

Total Revenues

Expenses
General Government
Public Protection
Public Ways & Facilities
Health & Sanitation
Public Assistance
Education
Culture & Recreation

Interest on Short & Long-Term Debt

Airports

County Sanitation Districts
Golf Course

Kern Medical Center
Public Transportation
Universal Collection
Waste Management

Total Expenses

Excess of Revenues Over Expenses
Before Special ltems and Transfers

Special ltems
Transfers

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
Net Assets at Beginning of Year, as restated

Net Assets at End of Year

Table 2 - County of Kern’s Changes in Net Assets (In Thousands)

Governmental Business - Type
Activities Activities Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 Change
$ 207,387 $ 279,218 $ 263,815 $ 207,805 $ 471,202 $ 487,023 (15,821)
606,855 595,660 1,853 686 608,708 596,346 12,362
6,564 9,165 9,674 4,505 16,238 13,670 2,568
181,729 148,204 181,729 148,204 33,525
156 150 156 150 6
61,061 43,739 61,061 43,739 17,322
33,182 27,423 33,182 27,423 5,759
1,414 1,338 1,414 1,338 76
7,402 5,909 7,402 5,909 1,493
795 590 795 590 205
14,682 10,502 1,404 1,294 16,086 11,796 4,290
20,488 3,041 3,593 3,627 24,081 6,668 17,413
“4) “4) 4)
1,141,715 1,124,939 280,335 217,917 1,422,050 1,342,856 79,194
82,788 78,057 82,788 78,057 4,731
374,303 342,347 374,303 342,347 31,956
38,348 22,146 38,348 22,146 16,202
126,815 194,836 126,815 194,836 (68,021)
381,836 369,097 381,836 369,097 12,739
9,002 8,852 9,002 8,852 150
10,556 12,915 10,556 12,915 (2,359)
41,864 39,428 41,864 39,428 2,436
6,223 5,608 6,223 5,608 615
3,429 3,061 3,429 3,061 368
4,725 4,400 4,725 4,400 325
240,742 192,186 240,742 192,186 48,556
5,652 5,376 5,652 5,376 276
7,930 7,557 7,930 7,557 373
36,237 26,631 36,237 26,631 9,606
1,065,512 1,067,678 304,938 244,819 1,370,450 1,312,497 57,953
76,203 57,261 (24,603) (26,902) 51,600 30,359 21,241
(36,337) (30,166) 36,337 30,166
39,866 27,095 11,734 3,264 51,600 30,359 21,241
270,262 177,025 69,050 63,442 339,312 240,467 98,845
$ 310,128 $ 204,120 $ 80,784 $ 66,706 $ 390,912 $ 270,826

Governmental Activities

The Governmental activities increased the County’s net assets by $39,866 for the year ended

June 30, 2006:

e Total revenue increased by 1.5% from the prior year.

e As an arm of the State government, operating grants and contributions serve
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multiple programs, representing 53.2% of the County’s program revenue for
governmental activities, and are tied to the mandated services such as public
assistance, public health and mental health. These revenue sources funding levels
remained virtually unchanged from the prior year.

e Taxes and
Supervisors

investment earnings that are generated locally provide the Board of
(Board) with most of its discretionary spending power. The increase in

taxes revenue is primarily due to the following:

1.

2.

Property taxes increased by $33,525 or 22.6% due to significantly higher
real estate values and oil prices.

Investment earnings increased by $4,180 or 39.8% due to higher
earnings on pooled cash and investments.

Due to a change in the State’s method of distribution, beginning in fiscal
year 2004 - 2005, vehicle license fees are to be reported separately as
vehicle license taxes. This year’s vehicle license taxes are $61,061. In
the prior years, the vehicle license fees were reported under operating
grants and contributions as revenue.

e Total Governmental expenses decreased by $2,166 or 0.2%. All major functions
increased except for health and sanitation and culture and recreation. The County’s
major cost component is public assistance.

Program Revenues & Expenses
400,000 -
350,000
300,000
250,000
200,000 | O Program Revenue
150,000 1 B Expenses
100,000 -
50,000
General Public  Public Ways Health & Public Education  Culture &
Government Protection & Facilities  Sanitation ~ Assistance Recreation
Revenues by Source
053.2% Operating Grants & Contributions @18.2% Charges for Services
@15.9% Property Taxes @5.3% Vehicle License Taxes
W2.9% Sales & Use Taxes 02.6% Other Taxes
@1.3% Investment Earnings W0.6% Capital Grants & Contributions
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Business-type Activities

Business-type activities’ total net assets increased the County’s net assets by $11,734. Revenues
received for charges for services and operating grants and contributions increased by $56,010
and $1,167, respectively.

Program Revenues & Expenses
250,000 -
200,000 -
150,000 -
OProgram Revenue
100,000 - B Expenses
50,000 -
7 Airports Kern Medical Waste Other
Center Management
Revenues by Source

W 94.1% Charges for Services 03.5% Capital Grants & Contributions

W 1.3% Miscellaneous 00.7% Operating Grants & Contributions

m0.5% Investment Earnings

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS

The County uses fund accounting to ensure and to demonstrate compliance with financial-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on future inflows,
outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
County’s financing requirements. Unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At June 30, 2006, the County’s governmental funds reported total fund balances of $297,974, an

increase of 10.9% compared to prior year's total ending fund balance. Approximately 70% or

$207,264 of the total fund balances is unreserved fund balance, which is available to meet the

County’s current and future needs. The remaining balance of fund balance is reserved.
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Reserved fund balance indicates that it is not available for new spending because it has been
committed to 1) reserve for property tax assessment appeals, $4,165; 2) reserve for debt
service, $30,712; 3) reserve for encumbrances, $21,683; 4) reserve for fiscal stability, $19,520
and 5) a variety of other restricted purposes, $21,792.

The County’s management may also designate unreserved fund balance to a particular function,
project or activity, while designated fund balance is available for appropriations at any time.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At June 30, 2006, unreserved fund
balance of the General Fund was $80,986. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may
be helpful to compare both unreserved fund balance and fund balance to total fund expenditures.
Unreserved fund balance represents 19.5% of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund
balance represents 30.4% of total General Fund expenditures.

The other governmental funds’ fund balances decreased by $7,961 or 10.2%. The following
major governmental funds increased in fund balance:

e Child Support — Fund balance increased by $1,357 or 119.0% from the prior year as a
result of additional Federal and State revenues.

e Human Services — Fund balance increased by $3,069 or 31.8% from the prior year as a
result of additional cost reimbursements from Federal agencies.

e Mental Health — Fund balance increased by $7,400 or 44.9% from the prior year as a
result of additional revenue from investments and aid from governmental agencies.

e Structural Fire — Fund balance increased by $1,578 or 16.1% from the prior year as a
result of additional revenue from taxes.

The following major governmental funds decreased in fund balance:

e Employers’ Training Resource — Fund balance decreased by $469 or 63.7% from the
prior year due to lower funding from governmental agencies.

e Roads — Fund balance decreased by $4,713 or 22.6% from the prior year due to
additional services and supplies expenditures.

e Tobacco Securitization Proceeds — Fund balance decreased by $8,307 or 15.3% from the
prior year due to expenditures incurred for construction projects.

Proprietary Funds

The proprietary funds provide similar information to the government-wide financial statements,
but in more detail.

The enterprise funds total net assets increased by $14,380. The increase in total net assets is
principally due to Airports change in net assets of $12,176. Airports net income increased more
than eighteen times prior year’s net income. Airports received significantly more funding from
the Federal government for the construction of the airport terminal.

The internal service funds continue to carry a negative unrestricted net asset balance as a result
of recognition of the self-insurance liabilities.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY VARIANCES

Differences between the County’s final budget and the County’s original budget resulted in a $18,659
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increase in supplemental appropriations that is briefly summarized as follows:

The increase in supplemental appropriations is primarily due to three factors that account for
$17,761 or 95.2% of the $18,659 increase. The first factor is the increase in the total general
government appropriations by $8,373, of which $6,856 of the increase is attributable to capital
projects capital assets. The second factor is the increase in total public protection by $6,289, of
which $5,459 of the increase is attributable to the Sheriff's department. The last factor is the
increase in the total health and sanitation by $3,099, of which $1,559 and $1,262 is attributable
to Department of Public Health and Emergency Medical Services, respectively.

The remainder of the supplemental appropriation increase consists of small increases in
appropriations for normal operations in the other budgetary units of the General Fund.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Governmental Business - Type
Activities Activities Total Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 Change
Land $ 23,073 $ 20,367 $ 22869 $ 22448 $ 45942 $§ 42,815 3,127
Land Acquisition in Progress - 63 457 63 457 (394)
Construction in Progress 36,752 46,898 51,952 22,880 88,704 69,778 18,926
Infrastructure 161,550 61,433 3,228 2,430 164,778 63,863 100,915
Structures and Imrovements 196,469 183,131 78,517 82,511 274,986 265,642 9,344
Equipment 61,759 58,827 13,457 12,492 75,216 71,319 3,897
Total $ 479,603 $ 370,656 $ 170,086 $ 143,218 $ 649,689 $ 513,874 $ 135,815

Capital Assets

The County’s total investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation is $649,689 at
June 30, 2006. Investment in capital assets includes land, land acquisition in progress,
construction in progress, infrastructure, structures and improvements and equipment and
intangibles. This current fiscal year, the County implemented GASB Statement No. 34, which
requires the County to report its infrastructure assets at historical value. The retroactive
historical value of the County’s infrastructure assets is $237,938, of which $166,877 has been
depreciated. In Table 3, the 2006 governmental activities balances changed to illustrate the
implementation of GASB 34. These changes are illustrated in the infrastructure balance as well
as the accumulated depreciation balances for infrastructure, structures and improvements and
equipment and intangibles.

Table 3 — The County’s Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation (In Thousands)

The major capital events during the current fiscal year includes the following:

e The completion of capital projects includes the Frazier Park Skate Park, the Lake Isabella
Park restroom and the ten playgrounds.

e Major construction in progress includes Phase II of the Panorama Park, the Rosamond
Fire Station and the Mojave Court Security.

e The Roads Department had several infrastructure improvements and additions for the
current fiscal year. The total for reconstructed roads was $10,630, roads dedicated to
the County by developers were $20,360 and additions to existing roads were $2,852.

e Airport’'s added new jet bridges and the construction of the new terminal is wrapping up.

Additional information regarding the County’s capital assets are reported in Note VII.A on pages 63
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through 65 of the CAFR.
Long-Term Debt

At June 30, 2006, the County’s total long-term liabilities are $798,607. Of the total long-term liabilities,
Certificates of Participation is $67,145, which is secured by the County’s lease rental payments, and
Pension Obligation Bonds is $489,906. The remaining long-term liabilities balance includes bonds
payables, facilities and capital asset leases and a public health facility loan.

With the exception of the 1994 Rosamond Library Project Certificate of Participation, the County has no
general obligation debt. All other Certificates of Participation and bonds are "AAA” insured. Certificates
of Participation issued by the County continue to be in the “A” category from Standard and Poor’s
Corporation or Moody's.

Additional information regarding the County’s long-term debt can be found in Note IX.A on page 68 of
the CAFR.

Table 4 — The County’s Outstanding Debt (In Thousands)

Governmental Business - Type
Activities Activities Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 Change

Lease Purchase Agreements $ 7,103 $ 5364 $ 3 9 3 9 7,106 $ 5367 $ 1,739
Certificates of Participation 16,565 30,320 50,579 54,530 67,144 84,850 (17,706)
Facility Lease 355 355 (355)
Loans Payable 8,380 9,952 8,380 9,952 (1,572)
Bonds Payable 225 225 225 225
Tobacco - Asset Backed Bonds 102,415 103,065 102,415 103,065 (650)
Pension Obligation Bonds 458,849 463,987 31,057 31,992 489,906 495,979 (6,073)
Landfill Closure Cost 29,969 29,403 29,969 29,403 566
Post Closure Cost 34,272 28,934 34,272 28,934 5,338

Total $ 593,537 $ 613,268 $ 145880 $ 144,862 $ 739417 $ 758,130 $ (18,713)

EcoNoMic FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The State’s budget remains as the major determining factor in determining the County’s budget for fiscal
year 2006 — 2007 and beyond. The County is required to contribute $75.6 million in property tax
revenues to the State budget in 2006 — 2007.

The recommended regular County budget for fiscal year 2006 — 2007 totals $1.3 billion, which is $159
million or 13.9% higher than total appropriations adopted in fiscal year 2005 — 2006. This increase
results chiefly from stronger oil prices and extremely robust growth in commercial and residential
property values, increased Federal and State funds for mandated programs, and a healthy carryover
balance from fiscal year 2005 — 2006. These gains, however, are partially offset by the continued shift of
property taxes to the State budget and actuarial changes impacting the County’s employer contributions
to the retirement fund. Ongoing negotiations with County employee unions for new memorandums of
understanding (MOUs) could also yield unknown cost increases. These MOUs may require the County to
disburse funds to affected General Fund departments during the fiscal year as more precise costs of
employee compensation become known for each department, or some departments could be required to
absorb new costs.

The $1.3 billion budget does not include special budgets totaling $493.1 million for enterprise funds such
as Kern Medical Center, Airports and Waste Management; internal service funds such as Workers’
Compensation and Group Health Insurance; and grant-funded programs administered by the Employers’
Training Resource and the Community and Economic Development departments. Special budgets have
decreased by $49.5 million or 11.2% from fiscal year 2005 — 2006.
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Discretionary revenues are projected to grow by $30 million or 9.6% above last year’s actual collections.
Discretionary revenues comprise 26.3% of the regular County budget, and the County must use much of
this money to meet the local match requirements for mandated Federal and State programs. Current
property tax revenues within both the General Fund and the Fire Fund are estimated to grow by a
combined $26.7 million in fiscal year 2006 — 2007, a 15.5% increase over fiscal year 2005 — 2006. A
strong carryover balance, along with a fourth consecutive year of increased assessed valuation and
property tax revenues will help offset the County’s higher retirement contributions and will increase funds
available for contingencies.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, creditors and
investors with a general overview of the County’s finances and to show the County’s accountability of the
funds it receives. If you have any questions about the CAFR or need additional financial information,
contact Mrs. Ann K. Barnett, Kern County Auditor-Controller-County Clerk at 1115 Truxtun Avenue,
Bakersfield, California 93301, (661) 868-3599 or visit the website at www.co.kern.ca.us.
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COUNTY OF KERN
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2006 (IN THOUSANDS)

Component
Primary Government Unit
Governmental Business-type First 5
Activities Activities Totals Kern
ASSETS
Cash and Investments $ 268,266 $ 72,109 $ 340,375 $ 22,875
Restricted Cash and Investments 15,214 13,078 28,292
Revolving Fund Cash 1,334 16 1,350
Receivables, Net 117,834 55,895 173,729 2,161
Due from Other Governments 60 60
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses 2,433 2,768 5,201
Deposits with Other 340 340
Internal Balances 22,197 (22,197)
Investment in Joint Venture 2,087 2,087
Net Pension Asset 260,327 260,327
Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable 59,825 74,884 134,709
Depreciable, Net 419,778 95,202 514,980 12
Total Assets $ 1,167,608 $ 293,842 $ 1,461,450 $ 25,048
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 23,003 $ 23,634 $ 46,637 $ 2,384
Salaries and Employee Benefits Payable 29,437 7,431 36,868 44
Claims Payable 6,854 6,854
Due to Other Governments 6,288 6,288
Accrued Interest Payable 8,502 1,413 9,915
Unearned Revenue 8,939 853 9,792
Long-Term Liabilities:
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 14,825 5,296 20,121
Current Portion of Compensated Absences 28,215 7,227 35,442
Current Portion of Landfill Closure/Postclosure Costs 4,115 4,115
Current Portion of Liability for Self Insurance 20,303 20,303
Portion Due or Payable After One Year:
Professional Liabilities 5,956 5,956
Certificates of Participation 14,095 46,465 60,560
Bonds and Notes Payable 553,933 29,878 583,811
Loans Payable 6,724 6,724
Accrued Interest 54,453 8,873 63,326
Capital Leases 3,960 3,960
Compensated Absences 18,811 4,937 23,748 103
Accrued Landfill Closure/Postclosure Costs 60,126 60,126
Liability for Self Insurance 65,992 65,992
Total Liabilities 857,480 213,058 1,070,538 2,531
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 417,677 124,631 542,308 12
Restricted (Note XI. C):
Debt Service 15,214 8,428 23,642
Other Purposes 135 135 15,476
Unrestricted (Deficits) (122,898) (52,275) (175,173) 7,029
Total Net Assets $ 310,128 $ 80,784 $ 390,912 $ 22,517

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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COUNTY OF KERN

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 (IN THOUSANDS)

Functions/Programs

Governmental activities:
General government
Public protection

Public ways and facilities
Health and sanitation
Public assistance
Education

Culture and recreation

Interest on short and long-term debt
Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Airports

County Sanitation Districts
Golf Course

Kern Medical Center
Public Transportation
Universal Collection
Waste Management

Total business-type activities

Total Primary Government

Component Unit:

Children and Families Commission

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Operating Capital Primary Government Component Unit
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type First 5
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Kern
$ 82,788 $ 53,668 $ 10,559 $ $ (18,561) $ $ (18,561) $
374,303 87,368 110,927 (176,008) (176,008)
38,348 10,661 23,320 (4,367) (4,367)
126,815 48,041 106,234 6,564 34,024 34,024
381,836 4,986 355,239 (21,611) (21,611)
9,002 580 552 (7,870) (7,870)
10,556 2,083 24 (8,449) (8,449)
41,864 (41,864) (41,864)
1,065,512 207,387 606,855 6,564 (244,706) (244,706)
6,223 3,396 656 9,674 7,503 7,503
3,429 3,580 151 151
4,725 4,937 212 212
240,742 205,985 455 (34,302) (34,302)
5,652 4,567 353 (732) (732)
7,930 8,390 460 460
36,237 32,960 389 (2,888) (2,888)
304,938 263,815 1,853 9,674 (29,596) (29,596)
$ 1,370,450 $ 471,202 $ 608,708 $ 16,238 (244,706) (29,596) (274,302)
$ 12,084 $ $ 12,329 $ 245
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes 181,729 181,729
Vehicle License taxes 61,061 61,061
Aircraft taxes 156 156
Sales and use taxes 33,182 33,182
Transient occupancy tax 1,414 1,414
Transfer taxes 7,402 7,402
Other taxes 795 795
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Unrestricted investment earnings 14,682 1,404 16,086 810
Miscellaneous 20,488 3,593 24,081
Gain on sale of Capital Assets “4) “4)
Transfers (36,337) 36,337
Total General revenues and Transfers 284,572 41,330 325,902 810
Change in Net Assets 39,866 11,734 51,600 1,055
Net Assets--beginning (As restated, note II. A) 270,262 69,050 339,312 21,462
Net Assets--ending $ 310,128 $ 80,784 $ 390,912 $ 22,517

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT



BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Fund Financial Statements









COUNTY OF KERN

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2006 (IN THOUSANDS)

Page1of1

ASSETS

Pooled Cash and Investments
Revolving Fund Cash

Cash and Investments Deposited with Trustee
Interest Receivable

Accounts Receivable

Taxes Receivable

Accrued Revenue

Due from Other Funds

Advances to Other Funds

Due from Other Agencies
Deposits with Others

Inventory - Materials and Supplies

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Salaries and Employee Benefits Payable
Advances from Other Funds
Due to Other Funds
Due to Other Agencies
Loans Payable
Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved (Note XI. A)
Unreserved, reported in:
General Fund
Special Revenue Funds
Capital Project Funds

Total Fund Balances (Deficits)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT

KERN CO.
DEPT. EMPLOYERS'
GENERAL OF CHILD TRAINING HUMAN MENTAL
FUND SUPPORT RESOURCE SERVICES HEALTH
77,278 $ 339§ 410 8817 $ 21,121
1,129 97 101 3
2,435 25 6 56 160
15,925 350
32,864
23,320 1,629 2,191 1,525 9,226
6,665
14,545
60
205
71
158,572 $ 2,00 $ 2,607 26,424 $ 30,860
5654 § 114 $ 1,407 328§ 6,087
16,225 835 4,667 2,108
6,443
1,305 1 464 3 5
35 6,193
8,993 24,604
32,177 950 1,871 36,080 14,393
45,409 97 104 16
80,986
1,043 736 (9,760) 16,451
126,395 1,140 736 (9,656) 16,467
158,572 $ 2,00 $ 2,607 26,424 $ 30,860
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ASSETS

Pooled Cash and Investments
Revolving Fund Cash

Cash and Investments Deposited with Trustee
Interest Receivable

Accounts Receivable

Taxes Receivable

Accrued Revenue

Due from Other Funds

Advances to Other Funds

Due from Other Agencies
Deposits with Others

Inventory - Materials and Supplies

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

TOBACCO OTHER
STRUCTURAL SECURITIZATION GOVERNMENTAL

ROADS FIRE PROCEEDS FUNDS TOTAL
16,181 8,557 591§ 55,522 § 188,816
2 2 1,334
49,318 15,215 64,533
240 159 32 500 3,613
16,275
3,556 675 37,095
3,800 4,860 10,343 56,894
260 622 595 8,142
4,500 3,111 22,156
60
205
1,577 727 2,375
22,058 18,483 54,441 $ 85,963 $ 401,498
510 1,153 191 653 $ 16,097
687 4,379 503 29,404
788 7,231
5,254 7,032
60 6,288
83 83
3,141 651 37,389
1,197 8,673 191 7,992 103,524
2,888 6,089 11 36,096 90,710
80,986
17,973 3,721 39,046 69,210
54,239 2,829 57,068
20,861 9,810 54,250 77,971 297,974
22,058 18,483 54,441 $ 85,963 $ 401,498

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Salaries and Employee Benefits Payable
Advances from Other Funds
Due to Other Funds
Due to Other Agencies
Loans Payable
Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved (Note XI. A)
Unreserved, reported in:
General Fund
Special Revenue Funds
Capital Project Funds

Total Fund Balances (Deficits)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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COUNTY OF KERN
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO

THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

JUNE 30, 2006 (IN THOUSANDS)

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds:

Deferred charges in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources;
therefore, the capital assets are not reported in the governmental funds.

Accrued interest recognized as soon as earned, regardless of its availability.

Negative Net Pension Obligation - Offset of Pension Obligation Bonds for
Unfunded Actuarial Liability.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
management of fleet maintenance, employee benefits, and personal injury,
retiree health insurance benefits to individual funds. The assets and

liabilities are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

Long term interest payable does not require the use of current financial
resources; therefore, is not accrued as a liability in the governmental funds.

Long-term liabilities applicable to the governmental activities are not due
and payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund
liabilities. All liabilities both current and long-term are reported in the
statement of net assets:

Pension Obligation Bonds

Bonds Payable

Certificates of Participation

Capital Leases

Loan Payable

Compensated Absences

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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297,974

28,450

475,638

126

260,327

(49,559)

(62,789)
(458,407)
(102,640)
(16,565)
(7,103)
(8,379)

(46,945) (640,039)

310,128






COUNTY OF KERN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 (IN THOUSANDS)

Pagelof1

REVENUES:
Taxes
Licenses, Permits and Franchises
Fines, Forfeitures and Penalties
Revenues from Use of Money and Property
Aid from Other Governmental Agencies
Charges for Current Services
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General Government
Public Protection
Health and Sanitation
Public Assistance
Education
Recreation and Cultural Services
Public Ways and Facilities

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Inception of Capital Leases

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits)

Fund Balances (Deficits), July 1, 2005 (as previous|
Prior Period Adjustments

Fund Balances (Deficits), June 30, 2006

KERN CO.
DEPT. EMPLOYERS'
GENERAL OF CHILD TRAINING HUMAN MENTAL
FUND SUPPORT RESOURCE SERVICES HEALTH
$ 225,815 $ $ $
9,264
14,922
11,787 103 17 100
108,021 23,898 19,792 298,541 58,618
82,913 217 37,623
6,334 97 4 2,756 44
459,056 24,098 19,813 301,514 96,385
81,122
254,325 22,741
34,606 90,053
14,443 20,282 314,490
8,610
12,167
6,110
18
4,939
416,340 22,741 20,282 314,490 90,053
42,716 1,357 (469) (12,976) 6,332
56,676 16,045 1,073
(83,516) (5)
6,110
(20,730) 16,045 1,068
21,986 1,357 (469) 3,069 7,400
y reported) 79,305 (217) 1,205 (12,725) 16,712
25,104 (7,645)
$ 126,395 $ 1,140 $ 736 $ (9,656) 16,467

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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TOBACCO OTHER
STRUCTURAL SECURITIZATION GOVERNMENTAL
ROADS FIRE PROCEEDS FUNDS TOTAL
REVENUES:
3,087 $ 51,322 $ $ 2,370 $ 282,594 Taxes
32 5,490 14,786 Licenses, Permits and Franchises
36 7,100 22,058 Fines, Forfeitures and Penalties
604 76 636 2,080 15,403 Revenues from Use of Money and Property
23,307 3,409 77,831 613,417 Aid from Other Governmental Agencies
6,663 18,814 4,963 151,193 Charges for Current Services
923 669 31,246 42,073 Other Revenues
34,584 74,358 636 131,080 1,141,524 Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
1,332 82,454 General Government
94,462 6,476 378,004 Public Protection
2,346 127,005 Health and Sanitation
32,086 381,301 Public Assistance
8,610 Education
12,167 Recreation and Cultural Services
41,797 1,622 43,419 Public Ways and Facilities
3,756 13 9,879 Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
20,545 20,563 Principal
28,707 33,646 Interest
41,797 94,462 3,756 93,127 1,097,048 Total Expenditures
(7,213) (20,104) (3,120) 37,953 44,476 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
5,500 22,388 22,846 124,528 Transfers In
(3,000) (706) (5,187) (68,760) (161,174) Transfers Out
6,110 Inception of Capital Leases
2,500 21,682 (5,187) (45,914) (30,536)  Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
(4,713) 1,578 (8,307) (7,961) 13,940 Net Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits)
25,574 8,232 62,557 85,932 266,575 Fund Balances (Deficits), July 1, 2005 (as previously reported.
17,459 Prior Period Adjustments
20,861 $ 9,810 $ 54,250 $ 77,971 $ 297,974 Fund Balances (Deficits), June 30, 2006

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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COUNTY OF KERN

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF
ACTIVITIES - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 (IN THOUSANDS)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds: $ 13,940
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities:
Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over

the estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Expenditures for general capital assets, infrastructure, and other
related capital asset adjustments $ 27,174

Less: current year depreciation (20,035) 7,139

Capital contribution of capital assets are not reported on governmental
funds but recorded at fair value on the statement of net assets. 20,360

Governmental fund revenues deferred due to unavailability were booked
in the statement of activities. 5,498

Governmental fund revenues not recognized due to unavailability were booked
in the statement of activities. 126

Repayment of debt principal are expenditures in the governmental funds, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabiliites in the statement of net assets:

Principal repayments:

Pension Obligation Bonds $ 5,125
Certificates of Participation 13,755
Capital Leases 3,944
Facility Lease 355
Tobacco -Asset Backed Bonds 650
Loans Payable 1,573 25,402

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources; therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in accrued interest payable $ (8,147)

Change in compensated absences 722 (7,425)
Adjustment to the Negative Net Pension Obligation is not reported in the
governmental funds, but the adjustment reduces the Net Pension
Obligation in the statement of net assets. (10,174)
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certain activities to individual funds. The net expense of certain activities
of the internal service funds is reported within governmental activities. (15,000)

$ 39,866

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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COUNTY OF KERN

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2006 (IN THOUSANDS)

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Pooled Cash and Investments
Revolving Fund Cash
Interest Receivable
Accounts Receivable, Net
Accrued Revenue
Due from Other Funds
Prepaid Items
Inventory - Materials and Supplies

Total Current Assets

Non-current Assets:
Cash and Investments Deposited with Trustee
Taxes Receivable
Advances to Other Funds
Deposits with Others
Investment in Joint Venture
Capital Assets:
Non-depreciable:
Land
Land Acquisition in Progress
Construction in Progress
Depreciable:
Structures and Improvements
Equipment
Intangible Assets
Subsurface Lines
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization

Total Non-current Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Salaries and Employee Benefits Payable
Due to Other Funds
Current Portion of Long Term Debt
Interest Payable - Current
Current Portion of Compensated Absences
Current Portion of Accrued Closure/Post Closure Liability
Current Portion of Liability for Self-Insurance
Deferred Income

Total Current Liabilities

Non-current Liabilities:
Advances from Other Funds
Estimate for Professional Liability Claims
Compensated Absences Payable
Due to Other Agencies
Liability for Self-Insurance - Long Term
Long Term Debt - Certificates of Participation
Long Term Debt - Pension Obligation Bonds
Long Term -Interest Payable - Pension Obligation Bonds
Accrued Closure Liability
Accrued Postclosure Liability

Total Non-current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted (Note XI. C)
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

$

Cumulative adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service funds activities related to enterprise funds.

Net Assets of Business -Type Activities:

GOVERNMENTAL
BUSINESS - TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
KERN NON-MAJOR INTERNAL
MEDICAL WASTE ENTERPRISE SERVICE
AIRPORTS CENTER MANAGEMENT FUNDS TOTAL FUNDS
5722 % 476 $ 54,398 $ 11,513 $ 72,109 $ 30,131
6 10 16
38 93 608 134 873 377
134 44,693 1,632 8 46,467 1,524
1,608 588 672 2,868 93
1,289 1,289 44
892 149 1,041
1,727 1,727 58
7,502 49,176 57,385 12,327 126,390 32,227
1,082 8,200 3,081 715 13,078
3,931 1,756 5,687
2,500 2,500
135
503 1,584 2,087
6,755 168 15,278 668 22,869
63 63
36,246 948 14,737 21 51,952
35,953 60,033 37,130 15,088 148,204
2,843 40,358 2,267 7,195 52,663 3,966
238 48 286
7,642 7,642
(22,404) (59,494) (18,039) (13,656) (113,593)
60,475 50,716 61,186 21,061 193,438 4,101
67,977 99,892 118,571 33,388 319,828 36,328
10 16,138 6,706 780 23,634 6,906
% 6,795 476 64 7,431 33
55 5 201 261 398
530 3,056 1,481 229 5,296 17
227 706 435 45 1,413 11
50 6,625 547 5 7,227 48
4,115 4,115
20,304
12 841 853
968 33,332 13,765 2,165 50,230 27,717
7,611 7,314 2,500 17,425
5,956 5,956
141 4,417 364 15 4,937 32
6,854 6,854
65,992
12,215 12,340 18,925 2,985 46,465
517 27,716 1,540 105 29,878 425
149 8,235 458 31 8,873 157
25,947 25,947
34,179 34,179
20,633 72,832 81,413 5,636 180,514 66,606
21,601 106,164 95,178 7,801 230,744 94,323
46,667 32,839 31,329 13,796 124,631 3,966
1,082 3,550 3,081 715 8,428 135
(1,373) (42,661) (11,017) 11,076 (43,975) (62,096)
46,376 $ (6,272) $ 23,393 $ 25,587 $ 89,084 $ (57,995)
(8,300)
$ 80,784

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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COUNTY OF KERN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (DEFICITS)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 (IN THOUSANDS)

GOVERNMENTAL
BUSINESS -TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
KERN NON-MAJOR INTERNAL
MEDICAL WASTE ENTERPRISE SERVICE
AIRPORTS CENTER MANAGEMENT FUNDS TOTAL FUNDS

OPERATING REVENUES:

Patient Services $ $ 166,508 $ 166,508

Charges for Current Services 193 8,861 16,659 6,441 32,154 113,361

Revenues from Use of Property 2,672 16 133 2,821

Other Operating Revenues 11,650 1 11,651
Total Operating Revenues 2,865 187,019 16,676 6,574 213,134 113,361
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries and Employee Benefits 1,658 131,811 8,553 1,346 143,368 4,845

Services and Supplies 2,002 75,833 21,169 18,776 117,780 17,043

Claims Incurred 104,211

Other Charges 177 3,630 3,455 26 7,288 5,822

Depreciation 2,230 5,196 1,761 1,282 10,469 623
Total Operating Expenses 6,067 216,470 34,938 21,430 278,905 132,544
Operating Income (Loss) (3,202) (29,451) (18,262) (14,856) (65,771) (19,183)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Taxes and Assessments 530 16,078 14,690 31,298

Fines, Forfeitures and Penalties 1 7 207 181 396

Licenses, Permits and Franchises 30 30

Interest on Bank Deposits and Investments 277 1,035 211 1,523 930

Aid from Other Governmental Agencies 10,330 455 389 353 11,527 69

Interest Expense (247) (3,201) (1,134) (276) (4,858) (52)

Other Non-Operating Revenues 327 2,567 662 37 3,593 576

Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets 29 (33) (4) (15)
Total Non-Operating Revenues 10,941 134 17,204 15,226 43,505 1,508
Income (Loss) before Transfers 7,739 (29,317) (1,058) 370 (22,266) (17,675)

Transfers In 4,437 32,209 36,646 31
Changes in Net Assets 12,176 2,892 (1,058) 370 14,380 (17,644)
Net Assets (Deficits), July 1, 2005 (as previously reported) 32,072 (9,483) 24,451 25,320 (40,147)
Prior Period Adjustments 2,128 319 (103) (204)
Net Assets (Deficits), June 30 , 2006 $ 46,376 $ (6,272) $ 23,393 $ 25,587 (57,995)
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service funds activities' related to enterprise funds. 2,646)

Change in Net Assets - Business - Type Activities

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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COUNTY OF KERN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 (IN THOUSANDS)

Page 1 of 2

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received for Patient/Current Services
Cash Received for Use of Property
Cash Received for Interfund Services Provided
Cash Received for Other Operations
Cash Received as Fines, Forfeitures, and Penalties
Cash Received as Licenses and Permits
Cash Paid for Salaries and Benefits
Cash Paid for Services and Supplies
Cash Paid for Reported Claims
Cash Paid for Interfund Services and Supplies
Cash Paid for Other Charges

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received from Other Funds
Taxes and Special Assessments
Cash Received From Advances
Cash Paid for Advances
Aid from Other Governmental Agencies
Payment of Long Term Debt - Pension Obligation Bond
Interest Paid

Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Capital Contributions

Acquisition or Construction of Capital Assets

Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets

Payment of Long Term Debt - Certificates of Participation
Interest Paid on Long Term Debt

Payment of Capital Lease

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Cash Collection on Loan Receivable

Interest on Bank Deposits and Investments
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1, 2005
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30, 2006

GOVERNMENTAL
BUSINESS - TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
KERN NON-MAJOR INTERNAL
MEDICAL WASTE ENTERPRISE SERVICE
AIRPORTS CENTER MANAGEMENT FUNDS TOTAL FUNDS
185 § 163,535 § 17,067 $ 6,474 $ 187,261 $
2,672 16 93 2,781
113,151
327 13,412 662 37 14,438 576
1 6 207 181 395
30 30
(1,603) (129,717) (8,358) (1,351) (141,029) (4,840)
(1,709) (57,397) (11,362) (18,456) (88,924) (10,766)
(100,771)
(241) (15,032) (1,433) (216) (16,922)
(177) (3,630) (2,889) (26) (6,722) (5,822)
(545) (28,823) (6,090) (13,234) (48,692) (8,472)
32,209 32,209
530 15,604 14,386 30,520
5,611 88,105 93,716
(84,686) (84,686)
1,845 455 389 54 2,743 69
(16) (1,595) (48) @3) (1,662) (13)
(224) (867) (89) (95) (1,275) (25)
7,746 33,621 15,856 14,342 71,565 31
13,564 13,564
(16,425) (3,966) (11,994) (875) (33,260) (553)
32 32 82
(1,895) (1,345) (210) (3,450)
(1,019) (574) (1,004) (180) (2,777)
(15) (15)
(3,880) (6,450) (14,311) (1,265) (25,906) (471)
60 60
264 842 157 1,263 835
264 902 157 1,323 835
3,321 (1,388) (3,643) (1,710) (8,077)
3,483 10,070 61,132 12,228 86,913 38,208
6,804 §$ 8,682 § 57,489 $ 12,228 $ 85,203 $ 30,131

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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COUNTY OF KERN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 (IN THOUSANDS)

Page 2 of 2

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Loss

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Other Non-Operating Revenues

Depreciation

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in Inventory
(Increase) Decrease in Accrued Revenue
(Increase) Decrease in Due from Others
(Increase) Decrease in Deposits with Others
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Items
(Increase) Decrease in Investment in Joint Venture
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Others
Increase (Decrease) in Salaries & Benefits Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Claims Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Provision for Liability Claims
Increase (Decrease) in Closure/Post Closure Liability

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

NON-CASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net Transfers of Capital Assets to Other Funds

Total Non-cash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities

GOVERNMENTAL
BUSINESS - TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
KERN NON-MAJOR INTERNAL
MEDICAL WASTE ENTERPRISE SERVICE
AIRPORTS CENTER MANAGEMENT FUNDS TOTAL FUNDS
(3,202) (29,451) $ (18,262) $ (14,856) $ (65,771) $ (19,183)
327 1,768 869 248 3,212 576
2,230 5,196 1,761 1,282 10,469 623
(8) (15,808) 75 (8) (15,749) (334)
(135) (135) 2
333 4 337
738 738 123
37 37
(54) (54)
10 7 17
7,756 3,038 (19) 10,775 6,276
42 3,235 (2) 175 3,450 (20)
30 607 84 (8) 713 5
26 1,487 111 2 1,626
(4,260) (4,260) 3,460
5,903 5,903
2,657 628 12,172 1,622 17,079 10,711
(545) (28,823) $ (6,090) $ (13,234) $ (48,692) $ (8,472)
$ $ $ $ (31)
$ $ $ $ (31)

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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COUNTY OF KERN

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2006 (IN THOUSANDS)

ASSETS INVESTMENT AGENCY
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,207,966 $ 132,307
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,207,966 132,307
Receivables:
Accounts 300 64
Loans 84
Taxes 8 59,621
Interest and Dividends Receivable 12,785 996
Total Receivables 13,093 60,765
Due from Other Funds 21
Due from Other Agencies 37 4,295
Total Due from Others 37 4,316
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 5
Total Assets $ 1,221,101 $ 197,388

LIABLITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Warrants Payable $ 126,072 $ 32,752
Accounts Payable 1,691 12
Advances Payable 330
Matured Bonds & Interest Payable 139 5,008
Due to Other Funds 1,805
Due to Other Agencies 159,296
Unapportioned Installment Redemptions 320
Total Liabilities 130,037 $ 197,388
Net Assets Held in Trust for Pool Participants $ 1,091,064
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 1,221,101

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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COUNTY OF KERN

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
INVESTMENT TRUST FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 (IN THOUSANDS)

ADDITIONS:
Contributions on Pooled Investments $ 4,855,342
Use of Money and Property 12,839
Total Additions 4,868,181
DEDUCTIONS:

Distributions from Pooled Investments 4,886,604
Net increase in Net Assets (18,423)
Net Assets held in trust, July 1, 2005 1,109,487
Net Assets held in trust, June 30, 2006 $ 1,091,064

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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COUNTY OF KERN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 (IN THOUSANDS)

L.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

REPORTING ENTITY

The County of Kern (the County) was established April 2, 1866, as a legal subdivision of the
State of California charged with general governmental powers. The County is governed by
an elected five member Board of Supervisors.

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present
the County as the primary government and its component units, entities for which the
County is considered financially accountable. Although legally separate entities, blended
component units are in substance part of the County’s operations; therefore, data from these
units is combined with data of the County.

BLENDED COMPONENT UNITS

Using the criteria of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14
and No.39, management has determined that the following component units should be
blended:

County Service Areas (CSAs)

The County’s Board of Supervisors is the governing body of the CSAs. Among its
duties, the Board approves the CSAs’ budgets, approves parcel fees and appoints
the management. The CSAs component unit is reported in the governmental
activities as a non-major governmental fund.

Golf Courses and Sanitation Districts

The governing body of the Sanitation Districts and the Golf Courses is the County’s
governing body. The Board of Supervisors approves the budget and appoints the
management of these entities, which are reported as non-major enterprise funds.

County of Kern Asset Leasing Corporation

Although this component unit has its own governing body, it provides services
exclusively to the County. Itis reported as a non-major governmental fund in these
statements. This non-profit entity holds the capital assets constructed through the
Certificates of Participation Program. Equipment and construction costs related to
proprietary funds are recorded within each appropriate enterprise fund, and any
cash related to the Certificates of Participation is designated as deposits with
trustee. (See Note IX.B)

Kern County Tobacco Funding Corporation (the Corporation)

This is a separate legal nonprofit public benefit corporation created under the
California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law. It was established to purchase
tobacco settlement payments allocated to the County from the State of California,
pursuant to the Master Settlement Agreement concluded on November 23, 1998
between the major tobacco companies and 46 states (including California), the
District of Columbia and four U.S. Territories (See Note XII. J for additional
information regarding the sale by the County to the Corporation of all rights, title
and interest of the County to such monies). The Corporation is governed by the

37



COUNTY OF KERN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 (IN THOUSANDS)

L

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

BLENDED COMPONENT UNITS (continued)

Board of Directors consisting of three members appointed by the County’s Board of
Supervisors.

DI1SCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

Using the criteria of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14
and No. 39, management has determined that the following component unit should be
discretely presented:

First 5 Kern

This commission was established under the State of California’s California Children
and Families Act. The County’s Board of Supervisors enacted Ordinance G-6565,
which created the Kern County Children and Families Trust Fund (Commission) and
established the membership and the commission. The County’s Board of
Supervisors appoints the majority of the commission and has the authority to
replace all members. The commission is responsible for allocating funds to local
service providers for programs that promote, support and improve the early
development of children from prenatal through age five and promote children’s
readiness to enter school. Due to the Board of Supervisors change in control over
the Commission, it will now be reported as a Discretely Presented Component Unit.

Complete financial statements for First 5 Kern may be obtained from the offices
located at 2724 L Street, Bakersfield, California 93301.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
BOARD STATEMENTS (GASB)

GASB Statement No. 43

GASB Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for Post-employment Benefit Plans Other than
Pension Plans, was issued in April 2004 and is effective one year prior to the effective date of
the related Statement for the employer (single-employer plan) or for the largest participating
employer in the plan (multiple-employer plan). GASB Statement No. 43 establishes uniform
financial reporting standards for other post-employment benefits (OPEB) plans and
supersedes the interim guidance included in Statement No. 26. The County will not be early
implementing GASB Statement No. 43.

GASB Statement No. 44

GASB Statement No. 44, Economic Condition Reporting : The Statistical Section - an
Amendment of NCGA Statement No. 1, was issued in May 2004 and is effective for statistical
sections prepared for periods beginning after June 15, 2005. GASB Statement No. 44
addresses the comparability problems that have developed in practice and adds information
from the new financial reporting model for state and local governments required by
Statement No. 34. The County will not be early implementing GASB Statement No. 44.
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COUNTY OF KERN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 (IN THOUSANDS)

L

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
BOARD STATEMENTS (GASB) (continued)

GASB Statement No. 45

GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-
employment Benefits Other than Pensfons, was issued in June 2004 and is effective for
financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2006, for phase 1
governments (those with total annual revenues of $100 million or more); after December 15,
2007, for phase 2 governments (those with total annual revenues of $10 million or more but
less than $100 million); and after December 15, 2008, for phase 3 governments (those with
total annual revenues of less than $10 million). GASB Statement No. 45 establishes
standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of OPEB expenses/expenditures
and related liabilities (assets), note disclosures, and, if applicable, required supplementary
information (RSI) in the financial reports of state and local governmental employers. The
approach followed in this Statement generally is consistent with the approach adopted in
Statement No. 27. The County will not be early implementing GASB Statement No. 45.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Information relating to the primary government is displayed in the statement of net assets
and statement of activities. These statements include information regarding the financial
statements, excluding the fiduciary activities. Eliminations were made in order to minimize
the double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between
governmental funds and business-type funds of the County. Governmental funds, which are
primarily supported by taxes, are presented separately from business-type funds, which
strongly depend upon fees charged to external parties.

A comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each segment of the
business-type activities of the County and for each function of the County’s governmental
activities are presented in the statement of activities. Direct expenses are clearly identifiable
to a particular function and are specifically associated with a program or function. Program
revenues include (1) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the
programs and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirement of a particular program. Revenues not classified as program revenues,
including all taxes, are presented as general revenue.

When both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available, it is County policy to use
restricted net assets first, and then use the unrestricted net assets as they are needed.

Comparative Data

The implementation of GASB No. 34 requires new information and restructuring of much of
the information that governments have presented in the past. Comparability with reports
issued prior to fiscal year ended 2002 is affected. Airports, a Non-major Enterprise Fund,
became a major enterprise fund following GASB Statement No. 34 criteria. Comparability
with prior year reports is affected.

Estimates
In compliance with generally accepted accounting principles, the preparation of basic
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COUNTY OF KERN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 (IN THOUSANDS)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
BOARD STATEMENTS (GASB) (continued)

financial statements require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results may differ from those
estimates.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s funds, including
fiduciary funds. The three fund categories that are presented separately are governmental,
proprietary and fiduciary. The emphasis of presenting these categories is to identify the
major governmental and enterprise funds. The major funds are separately displayed and all
the remaining governmental and enterprise funds are separately aggregated and reported as
non-major funds.

Proprietary funds’ operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. An exchange transaction is
where two parties receive and give up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues,
such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from non-exchange transactions.
Proprietary fund operating expenses, such as salaries and benefits or services and supplies,
result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in related to the
proprietary funds’ primary operations. Expenses that are not directly related to the
proprietary funds’ primary operations are reported as non-operating expenses.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. It is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fund. Principal sources of revenue are: taxes; licenses, permits, and
franchises; fines, forfeitures and penalties; use of money and property; aid from
other governmental agencies and charges for current services. Primary expenditures
are for general government; public protection; health and sanitation; public
assistance; education; recreation and cultural services; and capital leases.

Department of Human Services provides for direct financial assistance payment
to eligible recipients. Public assistance programs administered by the Human
Services Department are mandated by the State through the Welfare and Institution
Code, as implementing legislation for the Federal Social Security Act.

Tobacco Securitization accounts for the sale of rights to future tobacco
settlement payments. (See Note XII. J for additional information regarding the sale
by the County to the Kern County Tobacco Funding Corporation). The proceeds of
the sale are being used to finance certain capital projects and to set up an
endowment fund.
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COUNTY OF KERN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 (IN THOUSANDS)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
BOARD STATEMENTS (GASB) (continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continued)
The County has opted to report the following funds as major funds:

Kern County Department of Child Support Services accounts for the initial
court actions necessary to establish financial responsibility for the support of minors,
and for the enforcement and collection of child support payments from absent
parents under the Social Security Act.

Employers’ Training Resource (ETR) administers the federal Workforce
Investment Act and Welfare-to-Work funds received through the Department of
Labor, State Employment Development Department, and the Kern County
Department of Human Services. ETR accounts for job training and support services
for workers of all economic classes.

Mental Health accounts for developing and maintaining Countywide, client-
centered, culturally competent mental health services for people suffering from a
mental illness consistent with the provision of the California Mental Health Services
Law.

Roads accounts for planning, designing, constructing and maintaining public roads,
bridges, streets, and traffic control devices in the unincorporated areas of the
County, except for State-maintained highways and bridges.

Structural Fire accounts for fire prevention, protection and suppression services
for structures and watershed areas; hazardous material control and incident
response; emergency rescue and medical aid; and performs arson investigations.

The County reports the following major business-type funds:

Airports, which is headquartered at Meadows Field Airport (Bakersfield), contains
the financing requirements for administration, maintenance, and operation of the
County’s seven airports located at Bakersfield, Buttonwillow, Kern Valley, Lost Hills,
Poso, Taft, and Wasco.

Kern Medical Center accounts for hospital services: offering emergency,
outpatient and inpatient medical care to all classes of patients; including, Medi-cal
and Medicare eligible, medically indigent persons, and inmates of County institutions
and juvenile facilities.

Waste Management accounts for the operation, engineering, planning, and

regulatory compliance activities associated with the County’s Solid Waste Disposal
System.
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COUNTY OF KERN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 (IN THOUSANDS)

L

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
BOARD STATEMENTS (GASB) (continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continued)
The County reports the following additional fund types:

Internal Service Funds account for services furnished to other County
departments and are financed primarily by charges for such services. Internal
Service Funds account for fleet services and self-insurance programs such as group
health, retiree group health, unemployment compensation, workers’ compensation,
and personal injury and property damage.

The Investment Trust Fund is made up of funds for school districts, self-
governed special districts, State trial court and other investment trusts. The County
schools’ operating and debt service funds are grouped under this entity. The County
has responsibility for numerous self-governed special districts. Cash and investments
are administered by the County Treasurer, and the Auditor-Controller-County Clerk
makes disbursements upon the request of the responsible district officers.

Agency Funds are funds under the control of individual County officers who use
them for the deposit of various types of receipts and to accumulate resources for
specific purposes. Unapportioned Funds are used for recording the collection and
distribution of property taxes and interest on bank deposits. Disbursements are
made from these funds by warrants issued by the County Auditor-Controller-County
Clerk upon the requisition of the responsible officer.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The government-wide and proprietary funds are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The fiduciary funds are recorded
on

the accrual basis of accounting and are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement
of results of operations. Revenues are recorded when they are earned and expenditures are
recorded when they are incurred, regardless of when the cash was collected. Non-exchange
transactions occur when an entity gives or receives value without giving or receiving the
same value in return. An example of a non-exchange transaction would be property and
sales taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, property tax revenue is
recognized in the fiscal year the taxes are levied. Revenues from donations, entitlements,
and grants are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligible requirements have been
fulfilled.

Governmental funds are recorded on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Using this
method, revenue is recorded when it is measurable and available. Property and sales taxes
are considered available if collected within 60 days after the end of the accounting period;
whereas, interest, certain state and federal grants and charges for services are accrued
when their receipt occurs within 90 days after the end of the accounting period so as to be
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COUNTY OF KERN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 (IN THOUSANDS)

L

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)

both measurable and available. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to claims and judgments and compensated absences are recorded only
when the payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and capital leases are reported as
other financing sources.

The County has elected under GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund
Accounting, to apply all applicable GASB pronouncements to its business-type activities and
enterprise funds, as well as any applicable pronouncements of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board, the accounting Principles Board or any Accounting Research Bulletins
issued on or before November 30, 1989 unless those pronouncements conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements.

GASB Statement No. 34 has eliminated the presentation of account groups, but requires
these records to be maintained and incorporated with the Governmental Activities column in
the government-wide statement of net assets.

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the cost of certain activities, such
as fleet management and the self-insurance programs. The assets and the liabilities of the
Internal Service Funds are included in the Governmental Activities in the Statements of Net
Assets because they primarily serve the Governmental Activities of the County.

The Internal Service Funds profit or loss was allocated to the function or program that
benefited from the Internal Service Fund activity using the look-back approach.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
All amounts reported to be cash and cash equivalents represent cash or short term, highly
liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Investments

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, investments in the County Treasurer’s pooled
investments are reported at fair value. Participating entities that are not part of the County’s
reporting entity prepare independent financial statements which may or may not include
these changes in fair value. Interest earnings are distributed to all participating funds based
on their average daily balance within the pool. The unrealized increase or decrease in the fair
value of the investments was recognized.

Receivables and Payables

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending or borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “loans receivable or
payable” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e.,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

F.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS (continued)

the non- current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds
are reported as “due to/from other funds" (See Notes VI. A, VI. B, VI. C, and VI. D for
detailed reconciliation). These internal balances have been eliminated in the government-
wide statements.

Property Tax

All jurisdictions within California derive their taxing authority from the State Constitution and
various legislative provisions contained in the Government Code and Revenue and Taxation
Code. Property is assessed at 100% of full cash or market value (with some exceptions)
pursuant to Article XIII of the California State Constitution and statutory provisions by the
County Assessor and State Board of Equalization. The total 2005 - 2006 net assessed
valuation of the County of Kern was $58,541,513.

The property tax levy to support general operations of the various jurisdictions is limited to
one percent (1%) of full cash value and is distributed in accordance with statutory formulas.
Amounts needed to finance the annual requirements of voter-approved debt are excluded
from this limitation and are calculated separately and levied each fiscal year. The rates are
formally adopted by the Board after approval of city councils or the governing boards of
special districts where applicable. Property taxes are levied on both real and personal
property. Secured property taxes are levied on or before the first business day of September
of each year. They become a lien on real property on March 1 preceding the fiscal year for
which taxes are levied. These tax payments can be made in two equal installments; the first
is due on November 1 and delinquent with penalties after December 10; the second is due
on February 1 and delinquent with penalties after April 10.

Secured property taxes, which are delinquent if unpaid as of June 30, are declared to be tax
defaulted and are subject to redemption penalties, costs, and interest when paid. If the
delinquent taxes are not paid at the end of five (5) years, the property may be sold at public
auction. The proceeds are used to pay the delinquent amounts due, and any excess is
remitted, if claimed, to the taxpayer. Unsecured personal property taxes are not a lien
against real property. These taxes are due on March 1 and become delinquent if unpaid by
August 31.

In 1983, the Governor signed Senate Bill 813 which requires County Assessors to appraise
property and issue an assessment when new construction is completed or a change in
ownership occurs. The supplemental assessment will reflect the change in value for the
remainder of the property tax year. Tax bills for these new tax liens are issued throughout
the fiscal year and contain various payments and delinquent dates, but are generally due
within one year. If the new tax liens are lower, the taxpayer receives a tax refund rather
than a tax bill.

Inventory - Materials and Supplies

Inventories in the General Fund, General Services - Garage Internal Services Fund, the
Roads Fund, the Structural Fire Fund and the Kern Medical Center Enterprise Fund consist of
expendable supplies held for consumption. The General Fund and the Kern Medical Center
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F.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS (continued)

Enterprise Fund use the "moving average" method for costing inventory. Roads and
Structural Fire Funds value inventory at cost and the General Services - Garage Internal
Service Fund uses the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method of costing inventory. Other materials
and supplies are recorded as expenditures upon acquisition.

Although a component of net assets, reported inventories are equally offset by a fund
balance reserve for governmental type funds indicating that they do not constitute "available
spendable resources".

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include plant, property, and equipment and infrastructure assets
(roads, street lighting, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. By definition, County’s fixed assets exceed $5,000 in value and must have an
estimated useful life of at least two years. All purchased capital assets are valued at cost
where historical records are available and donated capital assets are valued at their
estimated fair market value on the date donated. The costs of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not
capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of
the related fixed assets, as applicable. Major outlays for capital assets and improvement are
capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of
capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the
assets constructed.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives
of the assets as follows:

Structures and Improvements 50 years
Airplanes and Temporary Buildings 25 years
Boats 20 years
Ground Equipment, Furniture, Office Equipment, and Fire Trucks/Engines 15 years
Kitchen Equipment 12 years
Construction, Communication, and Scientific Equipment and Vehicles 10 years
Computer Equipment 7 years
Infrastructure (roads, sidewalks, drains, bike paths, other improvements) 5-50vyears

The General Services - Garage Internal Service Fund depreciates vehicles on an estimated
useful life based on miles driven for the type of vehicle.

Compensated Absences

The County’s policy on compensated absences is to permit employees to accumulate earned
but unused vacation and sick leave benefits. The liability is accrued for the balance of
unpaid compensatory time off, sick leave, and vacation earned at the year-end. The
accumulated benefits will be liquidated as employees elect to use them in the future. All
payments of these accumulated benefits will be funded in the year in which they are to be
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F.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS (continued)

paid. Several funds that contribute to the liquidation of compensated absences are General
Fund, Kern County Department of Child Support Services, Fire, Building Inspection, Road,
Mental Health, Aging and Adult Services, Department of Human Services, and Employers’
Training Resource.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds type in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
appropriate governmental activities or proprietary funds type statement of net assets. Bond
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life
of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable premium or discount.

Fund Equity
Reservation of fund balances represents amounts that are not able to be appropriated or are
legally segregated for a specific purpose.

HOSPITAL AND OTHER PROGRAM REVENUES

Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from
patients, third-party payers, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Gross patient
services revenue for fiscal year 2005-2006 was $410,542, the estimated adjustment was
$274,826 for a net patient service revenue of $135,717. Retroactive adjustments are
accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted
in future periods as final settlements are determined.

Medi-Cal and Medicare Programs
A substantial portion of Hospital revenue is derived from services provided to patients eligible
for benefits under the Medi-Cal and Medicare programs. Medi-Cal inpatient services are
reimbursed at a contractually agreed upon per-diem rate. Services to inpatient Medicare
program beneficiaries are primarily paid under prospectively determined rates-per-discharge
based upon diagnostic related groups.

Certain other services to Medicare beneficiaries are reimbursed based on cost, subject to
certain limitations. Revenues from the Medi-Cal and Medicare programs represent
approximately 42% and 14%, respectively, of the net patient care revenue for the year
ended June 30, 2006.

The Hospital has various outstanding appeals pertaining to Medi-Cal and Medicare audit
settlements. These amounts have not been recorded as the outcomes are not certain. The
potential impact of these appeals will not have an adverse effect upon the County.

The disproportionate share hospital (DSH) program was established in 1981 as part of the
Medicaid program and requires State Medicaid agencies to make additional payments to
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G.

HoSPITAL AND OTHER PROGRAM REVENUES (continued)

Medi-Cal and Medicare Programs (continued)

hospitals serving disproportionate numbers of low-income patients with special needs.
Effective July 1, 1997, the program was amended to limit DSH payments to 100 percent of
the amount of incurred uncompensated care costs (UCC) with a special provision that
allowed payments of up to 175 percent of UCC to those public hospitals qualifying as “high
DSH” hospitals in the State of California.

In 2001, the Office of Inspector General (OIG) of the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services conducted an audit of DSH payments to Kern Medical Center in order to determine
that those payments did not exceed the hospital specific limit for fiscal 1998. A final report
was issued on September 24, 2002. The OIG states that the hospital exceeded its specific
limit by nearly $44 million for fiscal year 1998. The report states that Federal law requires
the State to recover overpayments. However, in its conclusion, the report does not
specifically request Kern Medical Center to refund the overpayment.

The issues surrounding the OIG audit are serious and affect every DSH participant hospital in
the State. The State has contended that payments made to KMC and other participating
hospitals were in accordance with a state plan approved by the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services (CMS), and are therefore not “overpayments”.

The California State Department of Health Services and the Medical Center disagree with the
preliminary findings of the OIG, and maintain that the DSH payments were properly paid.
Furthermore, both the State and the Medical Center assert that the governing statute, OBRA
1993, does not require retrospective settlement, as these settlements are extremely
disruptive and counter-productive to the purposes of the DSH program. This debate with the
OIG and subsequently CMS will go on for an indefinite period of time. No provision has been
made in these financial statements to repay the amounts claimed by the OIG in its report.

Other Program Revenues
The Hospital also receives revenues from the following other programs:

During fiscal year 1991 - 1992, Senate Bills (SB) 855 and 146 were enacted to provide higher
Medi-Cal reimbursement rates to "disproportionate share hospitals." These are hospitals
which provide service to a large number of indigent patients. The law requires certain public
entities to contribute funds to the State. These funds, along with additional Federal
revenues, are utilized by the State to fund the supplemental payment amounts. Kern
Medical Center received $78,262 and $75,766 in fiscal years 2006 and 2005, respectively,
under the State of California’s Medi-Cal disproportionate share program. The program
required the County to provide matching funds of $18,960 and $55,162 in fiscal years 2006
and 2005, respectively, which were recorded as expenditures in the General Fund. The
amount received by the Hospital through this program is dependent upon the number of
Medi-Cal inpatient days provided by the Hospital. Because the revenues generated are
based on services provided to patients, they have been classified as net patient service
revenues. Reimbursement to the General Fund for the contribution is recorded as other
revenue in the General Fund, and it is netted against revenue received from the State in the
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G.

HOSPITAL AND OTHER PROGRAM REVENUES (continued)
Kern Medical Center Enterprise Fund.

Proposition 99 imposes an additional state excise tax on cigarettes and other tobacco
products. The increased taxes on tobacco products generate additional revenues for health
care, research, health education, and public resources. State Assembly Bill 75 allocates
these revenues to health care providers based upon their share of the financial burden for
providing care to persons who are uninsured or otherwise unable to pay for care. The
County's share of these revenues for the year ended June 30, 2006 was $1,089,703.

Revenues related to the aforementioned programs are included in the accompanying
financial statements as hospital operating revenues. The non-operating revenues consist of
taxes and assessments; fines, forfeiture and penalties; licenses, permits and franchises;
interest on bank deposits and investments; aid from other governmental agencies; interest
expense; and gain on sale of fixed assets. Unpaid amounts are reported as other receivables.
Claims for these programs are subject to audit by State and/or Federal agencies.

Health and Welfare Realignment Act

In fiscal year 1991 - 1992, the State implemented the Health and Welfare Realignment Act
("Realignment™), which transferred a significant portion of the financial and administrative
responsibilities for local health and welfare programs from the State to Counties. The State
utilizes a one-half (1/2) cent sales tax increase and an increase in vehicle license fees as the
sources for funding allocations to the counties in lieu of previous State general fund
financing. The amount to be received by Counties is dependent upon the actual increased
sales tax and vehicle license fees. Kern County realignment revenues were recorded as
State revenues in the General, Mental Health, Department of Human Services, Kern Medical
Center Funds, and Aging and Adult Services — Non-major Special Revenue Fund.
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II.

NET ASSETS RESTATEMENTS

A. RESTATEMENT OF EQuITY
The County’s beginning fund balance and net assets have been restated to reflect prior
period adjustments to Mental Health, General Fund, Airports, Kern Medical Center and Public

Transportation — Non-major Enterprise Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006:

Fund Balances

Fund balances — Governmental Funds at June 30, 2005, as previously reported $ 266,575
Prior Period Adjustments:
Liability to the State not previously reported — Mental Health (7,645)
Adjustment to Deferred Revenue - General Fund 25,104
Fund balances — Governmental Funds at June 30, 2005, as restated $ 284,034
Net Assets
Net Assets — Business-type Activities at June 30, 2005, as previously reported $ 72,360
Prior Period Adjustments:
Adjustment to Construction in Progress - Airports 2,128
Adjustment to Capital Assets - Non-major Enterprise Fund (103)
Adjustment to Inventory — Kern Medical Center 319
Net Assets — Business-type Activities at June 30, 2005, as restated $ 74,704

The impact of these restatements in the government-wide financial statements is as follows:

Net Assets — Governmental Activities

Net Assets — Governmental Activities at June 30, 2005 as previously reported  $ 204,120
Prior Period Adjustments:
Adjustment to Accounts Receivable- Garage Internal Service Fund (204)
Liability to the State not previously reported — Mental Health (7,645)
Capital Assets — Governmental (Retroactive infrastructure reporting) 73,991
Net Assets — Governmental Activities at June 30, 2005, as restated $ 270,262

Net Assets — Business-type Activities

Net Assets — Business-type Activities at June 30, 2005, as previously reported $ 66,706
Prior Period Adjustments:
Adjustment to Construction in Progress - Airports 2,128
Adjustment to Capital Assets — Non-major Enterprise Fund (103)
Adjustment to Inventory — Kern Medical Center 319
Net Assets — Business-type Activities at June 30, 2005, as restated $ 69,050
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III.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A.

DEFICIT FUND BALANCES/DEFICIT NET ASSETS

The following funds have total fund deficits or total net assets deficits at June 30, 2006:

Major Governmental Funds

Human Services $ (9,656)

Non-major Governmental Funds

Public Improvement Districts $ (9

Master Lease (157)

Certificates of Participation (15)
$ (181)

Major Enterprise Funds

Kern Medical Center $ (6,272)

Internal Service Funds

General Liability $ (7,700)

Group Health (9,732)

Workers’ Compensation (64,628)
$ (82,060)

The fund deficit for Human Services is the result of last year’s increase in employees’ salaries
and benefits. As a result of an increase in fund balance for Human Services, the fund deficit
was $12,725 and $9,656 for June 30, 2005 and 2006, respectively. The deficit fund balance
for Public Improvement Districts, Master Lease, and Certificates of Participation are the result
of un-reimbursed capital expenditures at fiscal year end. The deficits in Public Improvement
Districts and Master Lease were reduced from prior year’s $16 and $411 to current year's $9
and $157, respectively, as a result of an increase in fund balances. The fund deficit for Kern
Medical Center is the result of prior year’s increase in employees’ salaries and benefits and
current year's increase in services and supplies. However, the prior year’s deficit of $9,483
was reduced to $6,272 in current year as a result of an increase in net assets. The General
Liability, Group Health, and Workers’ Compensation negative retained earnings represent
liabilities incurred as a result of self-insurance.
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Iv.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A.

DEPOSITS

Cash and Deposits

As provided for by the Government Code, the cash balances for all funds are pooled and
invested by the County’s Treasurer for the purpose of increasing interest earnings through
investment activities. The respective funds' shares of the total pooled cash and investments
are included in the accompanying balance sheet for governmental funds and statement of
net assets for proprietary funds under the caption "Pooled Cash and Investments”. In
accordance with Section 53652 of the California Government Code, a financial institution is
required to secure deposits in excess of $100 made by State and local governmental units by
pledging securities held in the form of an undivided collateral pool. The market value of the
pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal 110% of the total amount deposited by
the public agencies. The collateral must be held at the pledging bank’s trust department or
another bank, acting as the pledging bank’s agen